
 
REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, MAY 15, 2012 
7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO   45356 

 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL CALL  
 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Move to Executive Session to prepare for and review negotiations on compensation or other terms 
and conditions of employment for City personnel 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
  

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
   
 PROCLAMATION 
 Police Week in the City of Piqua - Police Chief Bruce Jamison 
 
  
 CONSENT AGENDA 

 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Approval of the minutes from the May 1, 2012 Regular Piqua City Commission  
 

2. RES. NO. R-84-12A 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Community Diversity Committee 

 
 NEW BUSINESS 
 

3. RES. NO. R-85-12 
A Resolution authorizing an application to the Ohio Department of Transportation for funds 
to improve Hartzell Field at the Piqua Municipal Airport 
 

4. RES. NO. R-86-12 
A Resolution adopting the city of Piqua’s Anti-Displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan 
as required by the Ohio Department of Development 
 

5. RES. NO. R-87-12 
A Resolution awarding a contract for the purchase of a refuse packer truck for the  
Sanitation Department 
 

6. RES. NO. R-88-12 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a lease agreement to permit 
the usage of a portion of Fountain Park and Hance Pavilion to the Miami Valley 
Corvette Club 
 
 



 2

  
7. RES. NO. R-89-12 

A Resolution rejecting the fact-finder’s decision regarding contractual matters between 
the City of Piqua and the American Federation of State, County and Municipal  
Workers, Inc. (AFSCME), Ohio Council 8, Local 984 

 
OTHER 
Monthly Reports – March 2012 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions  
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
a. Economic Development Update 
b. Department Update –  Amy Welker, Health Department 
 
COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 

 
ADJOURNMENT 



 1

 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday May 1, 2012 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Wilson. Absent: None. 

 
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

 
Approval of the minutes from the April 17, 2012 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting.  
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, to approve the minutes of the 
Regular City Commission Meeting of April 17, 2012. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Fess, Terry, 
and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
RES. NO. R-81-12 
 
A Resolution approving the renewal application for placement of farmland in an agricultural district 
filed by Ellen J. Allenbaugh for Parcel #44-100640 in the City of Piqua 
 
City Manager Huff stated the Public Hearing for this item was held on April 17, 2012 and at that 
time there were no objections to the application to place the farmland in the City of Piqua. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-81-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-81-12 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Martin, Wilson, Terry, and Fess.    Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-81-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-82-12 
 
A Resolution to approve the form and authorize the execution of Blue Creek Wind Energy 
Schedule with American Municipal Power, Inc. and taking of other actions in connection therewith 
regarding wind generated energy purchases 
 
Power Systems Director Ed Krieger stated the City requested that Sawvel and Associates, Inc. 
review the Iberdola Blue Creek Wind Farm (Wind Project) Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) 
being offered by American Municipal Power (AMP).  Mr. Krieger presented a power point 
presentation explaining the purchase agreement.  
 
 Since the 1996 closure of Piqua’s coal-fired generating plant, Piqua has utilized market 
purchases for the majority of the City’s power supply needs. The Piqua Energy Board has 
recommended and the City Commission has adopted a long-term power supply plan based on 
diversity of supply and joint ownership of power supply resources through the City’s membership 
in American Municipal Power (AMP), Inc.  Piqua is also partial owner of the Prairie State mine-
mouth coal-fired generating station, Fremont Energy Center natural gas combined-cycle 
generating plant, renewable project, which includes the Cannelton, Smithland, Willow Island, 
Meldahl and Green-up runoff-the-Ohio River hydro generating facilities. 
 
Piqua has the opportunity to participate in the recently completed Iberdrola Blue Creek Wind 
Energy Project located in Paulding and Van Wert counties in Northwest Ohio. AMP has negotiated 
a very favorable ten-year power purchase agreement for up to 54 megawatts (MW) of the 304 MW 
project. Piqua will be participating at a level up to 5,000 kilowatts, which translates to 5% of the 



 2

City’s energy needs.  When added to the hydro project renewable carbon-free resources will 
provide 20% of the City’s energy needs by 2015. 
 
The Power System included $18,727,000 in the 2012 budget for Power Supply Costs. Piqua 
would begin taking up to 5,000 kilowatts of the Blue Creek Wind Energy Power Purchase 
Agreement beginning July 1, 2012 and terminating June 30, 2022.  
 
The Piqua Energy Board recommended at their April 24, 2012 meeting that the Piqua City 
Commission adopt Sawvel and Associates recommendation. 
 
There was discussion of the projected market prices, the location of the wind farm, and it was also 
noted that gas is 30- 40% below the City of Dayton at this time. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-82-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-82-12 
be adopted. Roll call, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, Fess, and Vogt.    Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-82-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-83-12 
 
A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with Edsall & Associates, LLC 
for the Engineering/Landscape design services for the US Route 36 Corridor Beautification project 
 
City Engineer Amy Havenar explained the work limits for this project extend along the US Route 
36 corridor from the overhead railroad bridge to the west and Looney Road on the east.  The 
project includes removing and/or replacing portions of the utilitarian right of way fence and light 
posts with decorative fence and light post types; installing curbing around the existing grass 
median area to the west of the interstate bridge, excavating the painted median east of the bridge 
adding curb and topsoil to the area to create a planting area, and planting the medians and 
shoulder embankment area with native trees and bushes.  The improvements will be designed to 
complement the US Route 36/I-76 Beautification Project completed last year, stated Ms. Havenar.  
 
The City received $288,945 in grant funding from MVRPC for construction of this project, with the 
total cost estimated to be around $525,000.  As with all federally funded projects, the engineering 
costs associated with the project are funded with 100% local funds.  The project is scheduled to 
begin construction in the summer of 2013. 
 
City Manager Huff stated the Comfort Inn indicated to him they have had an increase in their 
business since the new landscaping project at Rt. 36 and I-75 has been completed. 
 
Mayor Fess stated that first impressions are the best advertisement for our city, and the new 
landscaping and lettering improvements certainly make a great first impression. 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated a meeting would be held with a combined committee made up of 
citizens and other committee members to gather input on what they would like to see in thisd next 
phase. 
 
Ms. Havenar explained a rendering would be made to show the community the plans as they 
develop for the project. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Ruth Koon, Park Avenue came forward and stated she is very excited about the project, and 
asked several questions concerning the type of plantings on the slopes.  Ms. Havenar explained 



 3

the type of plantings that would be planted on the slopes, further stating they would be low 
maintenance plants. 
 
Ms. Koon added “there are a lot of great things happening in Piqua right now.” 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-83-12 be     
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Terry, Fess, Vogt, and Martin.    Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-83-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-84-12 
 
A Resolution authorizing the purchase of property 212-214 W. Ash Street, Parcel N44-002220 
 
Law Director Stacy Wall explained this resolution would authorize the City to purchase the 
property known as 212-214- W. Ash Street.  This property is a blighting influence on the 
neighborhood and has been a nuisance to the neighboring property owners.  The current owner 
does not have the necessary resources to respond to raze or repair orders previously issued by 
the City of Piqua Health Department.  The owner has agreed to donate the property to the City to 
facilitate the remediation of the current conditions. The City has also contacted the mortgagee of 
the property who is agreeable to releasing all interest in the property to the City. 
 
The purchase of the property will be contingent upon securing a buyer for the property who agrees 
to demolish the existing structure and restore the site at no expense to the city. An adjacent 
property owner has expressed an interest in filling the role of the buyer and the City is currently 
negotiating with this party to achieve the goal of demolition and restoration of the site. 
 
Several commissioners stated this property has been an eyesore for years, and they have had a 
lot of complaints concerning the property, and would be glad to see something done with it. 
 
City Manager Huff stated a lot of work was done by the city staff to accomplish this, including City 
Planner Chris Schmiesing, and Law Director Stacy Wall, and he appreciates their efforts. 
 
Mayor Fess also commented that the City has a great staff. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-84-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-84-12 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Martin, Wilson, Terry, and Fess.    Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-84-12 adopted. 
 
Public Comment 
 
This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide 
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions 
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office. 
 
Ruth Koon, Park Avenue came forward and stated Mainstreet Piqua would be planting the 
planters in the downtown area again this summer.  Mainstreet Piqua will be participating in the 
City Clean Up to be held on Saturday May 4, 2012, and encouraged residents to participate. Taste 
of the Arts is scheduled in Downtown Piqua on Friday, May 18 and invited citizens to attend, 
stated Ms. Koon. 
 
Mayor Fess stated she appreciates all that Mainstreet Piqua does for the community. 
 
 
 



 4

 
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
Economic Development Update 
 
Economic Development Director Bill Murphy stated the State of Economic Development was held 
recently and shared information from the Report. This gives us the opportunity to celebrate the 
successes of our local businesses and organizations, stated Mr. Murphy. The keynote speaker 
was David Avdakov, Senior Portfolio Advisor at US Bank. Four businesses were highlighted and 
they include: Apex Aluminum for their Atlas Machine relocation, Upper Valley Career Center for 
their renovation project, Coilplus Berwick for their expansion project, and Hartzell Air Movement 
high bay expansion project. 
 
Mr. Murphy stated the city would be launching an “I Love Piqua Campaign” where students in the 
45356 zip code have the opportunity to produce videos on what they love about living in Piqua. 
 
Mr. Murphy announced Marias Technology was featured in the Dayton Business Journal, and 
Piqua Steel Crane & Rigging was highlighted in the Dayton B 2 B Magazine.  Again this is great 
positive news that goes a long way in helping our efforts in promoting the City of Piqua as a place 
to do business, stated Mr. Murphy. 
 
Department Update – Dean Burch, Information Technology 
 
Information Technology Director Dean Burch presented a power point presentation highlighting 
the responsibilities of the IT Department.  They include taking care of all the computer hardware, 
city network and software throughout the city, all telephone and voice mail systems, web site and 
other social media, department systems & applications such as the Fire, Police, SCADA, GIS,  
and the EGOV Services.  Technical assistance is provided to the Fort Piqua Plaza, Grow Piqua 
Now, Chamber of Commerce, Mainstreet Piqua, and WOTVC as needed. Mr. Burch shared 
several maps showing all the various areas in the United States and other countries that have 
visited our website page.   
 
Mr. Burch gave a brief history on the implementation of the City’s Information Technology System, 
stating it began in the early 1980’s when the first IBM System 34 was purchased, and how it has 
grown from the first IBM System to the up to date technology that they have today.  Statistics 
show 174 Workstations, 12 Servers, 17 Network printers & copies, 6 Networks, 3 SCADA 
Systems that the IT Department is responsible for on a daily basis. Some of the numbers include 
archived emails: 1,557,751 incoming, 533,926 internal and 300,994 outgoing.  More than 89% of 
incoming emails to the piquaoh.org domain are blocked by our software (junk email, viruses, etc.), 
stated Mr. Burch. 
 
Mr. Burch provided information on how the City of Piqua compares to other ICMA cities. In 
conclusion several upcoming projects were introduced and include: Intranet (Internal “Internet”), 
High speed fiber & connection project for Power, City Facilities, and Local Businesses, cell phone 
upgrades, online & mobile applications, and Web site/social media (Branding).  These are just 
some of the responsibilities of the IT Department, stated Mr. Burch. 
 
City Manager Huff stated on May 2 from 6:00 A.M. – 9:00 P.M. Bob Evans will be donating 15% of 
their sales of the City Coupons presented to them by citizens for their meals to the “GIVE” 
Committee. 
 
City Manager Huff reminded citizens that May 5, 2012 is the citywide cleanup day. This is being 
referred to as” Piqua Pick it Up and Clean it Day” This is a citywide volunteer effort to clean up the 
parks, paths, and any public areas and will begin at 8:30 A.M. and conclude at 12:00 P.M. Anyone 
wishing to participate is encouraged to go online at www.piquaoh.org and register, or contact the 
City Manager’s office to sign up.  The Southview Neighborhood Association will be providing lunch 
at Mote Park for anyone participating in the clean up at 12:00 P.M.. 



 5

 
City Manager Huff stated the Rotary Club will be helping Mainstreet Piqua in the downtown area, 
and he personally would be going over to the Post Office to sweep the steps as they are in great 
need of a cleaning. 
 
Commissioner Comments 
 
Commissioner Wilson encouraged citizens to participate in the Clean Up on May 4, and reminded 
citizens of the change in the speed limit on Park Avenue, stating it is now officially 25 MPH. 
 
Commissioner Terry also encouraged citizens to participate in the Clean Up in their 
neighborhoods or just around their own homes.  Again this year, Cakes for a Cause sponsored by 
the Piqua Community Foundation was a great success with a variety of cakes being auctioned off 
for a great cause. Arbor Day activities were held in Kiwanis Park and a tree was planted in honor 
of Colleen Noonan by the Kindergarten class from Nicklin Avenue School, stated Commissioner 
Terry. 
 
Commissioner Vogt stated with the nice weather the Municipal Golf Course is open and is in great 
shape. Memberships are available at the Golf Course and he would like to see more participation.  
Also the Municipal Swimming Pool will be opening Memorial Day Weekend and memberships are 
available at the Street Department. There are so many nice things in things in Piqua for residents 
to take advantage of at a minimal cost, and encouraged citizens to visit the Golf Course, Pool, and 
the many Parks this summer. 
 
Mayor Fess stated the River Summit is scheduled for Thursday, May 3, at the Fort Piqua Plaza 
and encouraged residents to attend.  The Senior Center Annual Swing Dance will be held on May 
12 at the Fort Piqua Plaza and encouraged all dancers to come out and enjoy the music. Friday, 
May 4 the Veterans will be leaving for Washington, D.C. at 8:30 from the Miami Valley Centre Mall 
and encouraged citizens to come out for the send off.  These are all very exciting happenings in 
the City of Piqua, said Mayor Fess. 
 
Mayor Fess stated with the announcement of the three new expansions recently they will be 
providing about 140 new jobs in the City of Piqua, which is very exciting news.   
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Regular 
Piqua City Commission Meeting at 8:30 P.M.  Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Vogt, and Terry. 
Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
                  
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR   
PASSED: ______________________   
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
         REBECCA J. COOL 
        CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  RESOLUTION NO. R-84-12A 
 

       A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE  
   COMMUNITY DIVERSITY COMMITTEE 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Gary D. Meek is hereby appointed to fill the unexpired term of 
Larry Hamilton as a member of the Community Diversity Committee for a term to 
expire on March 1, 2014 or until his successor is confirmed and qualified; 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



RESOLUTION NO.  R-85-12 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN APPLICATION TO THE OHIO DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION FOR FUNDS TO IMPROVE HARTZELL FIELD AT THE 

PIQUA MUNICIPAL AIRPORT 

 

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio, through the Ohio Department of Transportation, 
administers financial assistance programs for small public airports, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua desires financial assistance for such a project,  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami 
County, Ohio, a majority of all members elected thereto concurring: 

SEC. 1: That the City of Piqua approves filing an application for assistance from 
the Ohio Department of Transportation. 

SEC. 2: That Gary Huff, City Manager, is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute and file an application with the Ohio Department of Natural Resources and to provide 
all information and documentation required to become eligible for possible funding assistance. 

SEC. 3: That the City of Piqua does agree to obligate the funds required to 
satisfactorily complete the proposed project under the terms and conditions of the Ohio 
Department of Transportation. 

SEC. 4: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 
period allowed by law. 

       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: ______________________________ 
  REBECCA J. COOL 
  CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 3
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
May 15, 2012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

 

 
Grant Request to Ohio Department of Transportation - Airport Improvements 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: William Lutz, Development Program Manager 
Department: Development 

 
MEETING TYPE 

 
 

 

 
Regular 

 
 

 
Work Session 

 
Special 

 
Retreat 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 

 
Ordinance #:       

 
Resolution #: R-85-12 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other: City Engineer 

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
Each year, the Ohio Department of Transportation requests for proposals for 
their Ohio Airport Grant Program.  The program, funded at $1 million each year 
provides Ohio's small airports funding for obstruction removal and runway 
improvements.  The City of Piqua last received assistance from this program in 
2006.  The City plans to perform crack sealing, crack repairing and pavement 
marking.     

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $18,000 
Expenditure $:  $6,060 
Source of Funds: Airport Fund 
Narrative:  Each year, the City of Piqua budgets $18,000 for 

improvements at the Piqua Municipal Airport.  Through the 
Ohio Airport Grant Program, the City of Piqua will request 
$54,540, which is 90% of the total project cost.  The city 
must provide 10% of the project costs, which is $6,060.   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve Resolution - This will cause the community to commit $6,060, if 
the grant is awarded, and receive a grant of $54,540 in order to make 
necessary improvements to the airport. 

2. Deny Resolution and Continue Work - The commission may choose to 
deny the resolution and use local funds to complete improvements.  

3. Deny Resolution and take no action - The commission may choose to deny 
the resolution and take no action at the airport at this time. 



4.       
 

PROJECT TIMELINE 
 

 
Applications were submitted, but will not be finalized until the Ohio 
Department of Transportation receives a copy of the commission resolution, if 
adopted.  The City anticipates knowing whether the request was approved later 
this spring and the project is expected to be completed by the end of 2012. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
Staff would recommend that the City Commission adopt the resolution. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. R-86-12 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CITY OF PIQUA’S ANTI-DISPLACEMENT AND 
RELOCATION ASSISTANCE PLAN AS REQUIRED BY THE OHIO DEPARTMENT 

OF DEVELOPMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio, through the Ohio Department of Development, 
administers Community Development Block Grant funds for small cities and counties, and 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Development has required those communities that 
participate in the Community Development Block Grant program to adopt an Anti-Displacement 
and Relocation Assistance Plan every five years, and 

WHERAS, the City Commission of the City of Piqua adopted an Anti-Displacement and 
Relocation Assistance plan through Resolution #R-71-07, on May 7, 2007. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami 
County, Ohio, a majority of all members elected thereto concurring: 

SEC. 1: That the City of Piqua hereby adopts the Anti-Displacement and 
Relocation Assistance Plan as required by the Ohio Department of Development. 

SEC. 2: That the City of Piqua will provide relocation assistance as described in 
24 CFR 570.488 to each low to moderate income household displaced by the demolition of 
habitable housing or conversion of a low to moderate income dwelling to another use as a direct 
result of assisted activities. 

SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 
period allowed by law. 

       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: ______________________________ 
  REBECCA J. COOL 
  CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 4
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
May 15, 2012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

 

 
Anti-Displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: William Lutz, Development Program Manager 
Department: Development 

 
MEETING TYPE 

 
 

 

 
Regular 

 
 

 
Work Session 

 
Special 

 
Retreat 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 

 
Ordinance #:       

 
Resolution #: R-86-12 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:       

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
The Ohio Department of Development provides funds to the state's small cities 
and counties to administer local Community Development Block Grant funds.  
As a condition of these funds, the City of Piqua must adopt an Anti-
Displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan every five years.  The purpose of 
the plan is to ensure that any habitable residential units demolished by block 
grant funding will be replaced by the city and offered to low to moderate 
income households.  It should be noted that the city has never had to implement 
the plan   

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $0 
Expenditure $:  $0 
Source of Funds: Not Applicable 
Narrative:  There is no fiscal impact due to this resolution. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve Resolution - This will allow the city to be compliant with the 
Ohio Department of Development's Community Development Block Grant 
program. 

2. Deny Resolution - This will not allow make the city compliant with Ohio 
Department of Development regulations and risk future funding 
opportunties through the Community Development Block Grant program.  

3. . 
4.       



 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
The City of Piqua last adopted this plan in May 2007.  If this resolution is 
adopted, the next time the City will need to re-adopt the plan in Spring 2017, 
unless otherwise directed by the Ohio Department of Development. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
Staff would recommend that the City Commission adopt the resolution. 

 





                                          RESOLUTION NO. R-87-12 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT FOR 
 THE PURCHASE OF A REFUSE PACKER TRUCK 

                                   FOR THE SANITATION DEPARTMENT 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the present operations of the City require the purchase of a 
Refuse packer truck for the Sanitation Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on January 3, 2012, the Commission passed Resolution No. R-
2-12  authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids, according to law, 
for a refuse packer truck for the Sanitation Department; 
 
 WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened resulting in the 
tabulation of bids as listed in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 
 SEC. 1:  A contract for said refuse packer truck is hereby 
awarded to Stoops Freightliner of Dayton as the lowest responsible bidder and the 
City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with said bidder pursuant 
to contract specifications; 
 
 SEC. 2:  The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her 
warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the City treasury in 
payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of $ 126,500; 
 
 SEC. 3:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from 
and after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
            
     ______________________________  
     LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:  _____________________ 
 
ATTEST:   _____________________ 
                  REBECCA J. COOL 
        CLERK OF COMMISSION 
  



 

Item # 5
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
May 15, 20012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

 
A Resolution awarding a contract for the purchase of a refuse packer truck for 
the Sanitation Department. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy Welker, Director of Health & Sanitation 
Department: Sanitation 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 

 
Ordinance #:       

 
Resolution #: R-87-12 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:       

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

The Sanitation Department utilizes a fleet of trucks to perform the daily functions of the 
department.  This is a routine replacement of the oldest truck in the fleet, a 1997 Ford with over 
100,000 miles.  One new option included on this truck will be a cart tipper.  This feature will 
allow for semi-automated waste collection in the future. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  126,500 
Expenditure $:  124,775 
Source of Funds: Sanitation Fund reserves 
Narrative:  Selected bid is under budget, in addition, the City will 

receive $4,500 for our trade in vehicle. 
 

OPTIONS 
(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

 
 

1. Approve the purchase of the refuse truck 
2. Deny the purchase of the refuse truck and provide staff with further 

direction. 
3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
Truck approximate delivery in 120 days. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
Approval of the purchase of the refuse truck. 

ATTACHMENTS  Bid Tabulation 

 



Bi
d 

O
pe

ni
ng

 IF
B 

#1
21

4 
Pa

ck
er

 T
ru

ck
O

pe
ne

d 
on

 4
/1

1/
12

 a
t 2

:0
0 

p.
m

. Ve
nd

or
 N

am
e

M
ia

m
i V

al
le

y 
In

tl 
Tr

uc
ks

M
ia

m
i V

al
le

y 
In

tl 
Tr

uc
ks

Ci
ty

, S
ta

te
Da

yt
on

, O
H 

Da
yt

on
, O

H 

Ite
m

 #
1 

- T
ru

ck
 P

ric
e

70
,1

55
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

70
,1

55
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

M
ak

e 
an

d 
M

od
el

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l W
or

ks
ta

r 7
40

0 
4x

2
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l W

or
ks

ta
r 7

40
0 

4x
2

Ite
m

 #
2 

- P
ac

ke
r P

ric
e

52
,9

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

54
,2

82
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

M
ak

e 
an

d 
M

od
el

N
ew

 W
ay

 C
ob

ra
 2

0 
w

/ l
ift

 a
xl

e 
&

 ti
re

s
E-

Z 
Pa

ck
 G

30
0C

 w
/ p

us
he

r a
xl

e

Ite
m

 #
3 

- T
ra

de
 in

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 1
99

8 
Fo

rd
$4

,5
00

 N
ew

 W
ay

 T
ra

de
$4

,0
00

 U
CS

 tr
ad

e
O
pt
io
na

l
$3

,5
00

 M
VI

 T
ra

de
$3

,5
00

 M
VI

 T
ra

de

Ite
m

 #
4 

- O
pt

io
ns

Ho
pp

er
 L

in
er

1,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

67
3.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Ca
rt

 T
ip

pe
r

$4
20

0 
Pe

rk
in

s D
62

25
; $

30
00

 D
65

00
(A

) $
43

25
; (

B)
 $

55
15

Re
ev

in
g 

W
itc

h 
an

d 
Ki

ck
 B

ar
5,

95
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
,1

36
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l c
os

t f
or

 T
ru

ck
 a

nd
 P

ac
ke

r c
om

bi
ne

d
12

3,
05

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
4,

43
7.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
w

ith
ou

t t
ra

de
 in

To
ta

l c
os

t f
or

 T
ru

ck
 a

nd
 P

ac
ke

r c
om

bi
ne

d
$1

18
,5

55
 w

/N
ew

 W
ay

 tr
ad

e
$1

20
,4

37
 w

/U
CS

 tr
ad

e
w

ith
 tr

ad
e 

in
$1

19
,5

55
 w

/M
VI

 tr
ad

e
$1

20
,9

37
 w

/M
VI

 tr
ad

e

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
e 

de
liv

er
y 

AR
O

 in
 d

ay
s

13
5

15
0-

16
5



Bi
d 

O
pe

ni
ng

 IF
B 

#1
21

4 
Pa

ck
er

 T
ru

ck
O

pe
ne

d 
on

 4
/1

1/
12

 a
t 2

:0
0 

p.
m

. Ve
nd

or
 N

am
e

Ci
ty

, S
ta

te

Ite
m

 #
1 

- T
ru

ck
 P

ric
e

M
ak

e 
an

d 
M

od
el

Ite
m

 #
2 

- P
ac

ke
r P

ric
e

M
ak

e 
an

d 
M

od
el

Ite
m

 #
3 

- T
ra

de
 in

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 1
99

8 
Fo

rd
O
pt
io
na

l

Ite
m

 #
4 

- O
pt

io
ns

Ho
pp

er
 L

in
er

Ca
rt

 T
ip

pe
r

Re
ev

in
g 

W
itc

h 
an

d 
Ki

ck
 B

ar

To
ta

l c
os

t f
or

 T
ru

ck
 a

nd
 P

ac
ke

r c
om

bi
ne

d
w

ith
ou

t t
ra

de
 in

To
ta

l c
os

t f
or

 T
ru

ck
 a

nd
 P

ac
ke

r c
om

bi
ne

d
w

ith
 tr

ad
e 

in

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
e 

de
liv

er
y 

AR
O

 in
 d

ay
s

M
ia

m
i V

al
le

y 
In

tl 
Tr

uc
ks

Be
st

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

St
oo

ps
 F

re
ig

ht
lin

er
Da

yt
on

, O
H 

N
or

th
 R

oy
al

to
n,

 O
H

Da
yt

on
, O

H 

70
,1

55
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

74
,4

20
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
67

,5
85

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l W

or
ks

ta
r 7

40
0 

4x
2

Fr
ei

gh
tli

ne
r M

2 
(2

01
3)

Fr
ei

gh
tli

ne
r M

2-
10

6
w

/o
 li

ft
 a

xl
e

56
,2

41
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

43
,8

72
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
52

,9
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
M

cN
ei

lu
s 2

01
0

Le
ac

h 
Al

ph
a 

III
N

ew
 W

ay
 C

ob
ra

 2
0

in
cl

ud
es

 li
ft

 a
xl

e

3,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   

1,
46

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

40
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

15
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
13

9.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

97
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
95

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   

12
6,

39
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

8,
29

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

0,
48

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

12
2,

89
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
5,

98
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  

13
5

16
0-

19
0

12
0



Bi
d 

O
pe

ni
ng

 IF
B 

#1
21

4 
Pa

ck
er

 T
ru

ck
O

pe
ne

d 
on

 4
/1

1/
12

 a
t 2

:0
0 

p.
m

. Ve
nd

or
 N

am
e

Ci
ty

, S
ta

te

Ite
m

 #
1 

- T
ru

ck
 P

ric
e

M
ak

e 
an

d 
M

od
el

Ite
m

 #
2 

- P
ac

ke
r P

ric
e

M
ak

e 
an

d 
M

od
el

Ite
m

 #
3 

- T
ra

de
 in

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 1
99

8 
Fo

rd
O
pt
io
na

l

Ite
m

 #
4 

- O
pt

io
ns

Ho
pp

er
 L

in
er

Ca
rt

 T
ip

pe
r

Re
ev

in
g 

W
itc

h 
an

d 
Ki

ck
 B

ar

To
ta

l c
os

t f
or

 T
ru

ck
 a

nd
 P

ac
ke

r c
om

bi
ne

d
w

ith
ou

t t
ra

de
 in

To
ta

l c
os

t f
or

 T
ru

ck
 a

nd
 P

ac
ke

r c
om

bi
ne

d
w

ith
 tr

ad
e 

in

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
e 

de
liv

er
y 

AR
O

 in
 d

ay
s

Ce
nt

ra
l I

nd
ia

na
 T

ru
ck

St
oo

ps
 F

re
ig

ht
lin

er
St

oo
ps

 F
re

ig
ht

lin
er

Eq
ui

pm
en

t C
or

p.
Da

yt
on

, O
H 

Da
yt

on
, O

H 
In

di
an

ap
ol

is,
 IN

67
,5

85
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

67
,5

85
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

78
,6

39
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Fr
ei

gh
tli

ne
r M

2-
10

6
Fr

ei
gh

tli
ne

r M
2-

10
6

Fr
ei

gh
tli

ne
r M

21
06

 (2
01

2)
w

/o
 li

ft
 a

xl
e

w
/o

 li
ft

 a
xl

e

52
,7

50
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

54
,2

82
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

52
,8

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

W
ay

ne
 F

ur
y 

20
EZ

 P
ac

k 
G3

00
C 

He
il 

PT
-1

02
0

in
cl

ud
es

 li
ft

 a
xl

e
w

ith
 p

us
he

r a
xl

e

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

59
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

67
3.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
78

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
92

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
(A

) $
43

25
 (B

) $
55

15
5,

95
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
88

3.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

,1
36

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

53
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
0,

33
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
12

1,
86

7.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
1,

43
9.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
7,

86
7.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

6,
43

9.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
0

60
-7

5 
45

-7
5

af
te

r r
ec

ei
pt

 o
f c

ha
ss

is



Bi
d 

O
pe

ni
ng

 IF
B 

#1
21

4 
Pa

ck
er

 T
ru

ck
O

pe
ne

d 
on

 4
/1

1/
12

 a
t 2

:0
0 

p.
m

. Ve
nd

or
 N

am
e

Ci
ty

, S
ta

te

Ite
m

 #
1 

- T
ru

ck
 P

ric
e

M
ak

e 
an

d 
M

od
el

Ite
m

 #
2 

- P
ac

ke
r P

ric
e

M
ak

e 
an

d 
M

od
el

Ite
m

 #
3 

- T
ra

de
 in

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 1
99

8 
Fo

rd
O
pt
io
na

l

Ite
m

 #
4 

- O
pt

io
ns

Ho
pp

er
 L

in
er

Ca
rt

 T
ip

pe
r

Re
ev

in
g 

W
itc

h 
an

d 
Ki

ck
 B

ar

To
ta

l c
os

t f
or

 T
ru

ck
 a

nd
 P

ac
ke

r c
om

bi
ne

d
w

ith
ou

t t
ra

de
 in

To
ta

l c
os

t f
or

 T
ru

ck
 a

nd
 P

ac
ke

r c
om

bi
ne

d
w

ith
 tr

ad
e 

in

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
e 

de
liv

er
y 

AR
O

 in
 d

ay
s

Ke
nw

or
th

 o
f D

ay
to

n
Ke

nw
or

th
 o

f D
ay

to
n

W
or

ld
w

id
e 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t
Da

yt
on

, O
H 

Da
yt

on
, O

H 
Da

yt
on

, O
H 

77
,7

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
77

,7
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
69

,9
16

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Ke

nw
or

th
 T

37
0 

(2
01

3)
Ke

nw
or

th
 T

37
0

Hi
no

 3
38

52
,9

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
54

,2
82

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
56

,2
41

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Co

br
a 

20
EZ

 P
ac

k 
G3

00
C

M
cN

ei
lu

s 2
01

0

4,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

67
3.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
46

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

$4
20

0 
Ro

ta
ry

 o
r $

30
00

 C
yl

in
de

r
$3

50
0 

D6
50

0;
 $

46
90

 D
62

25
6,

15
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

95
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
,1

36
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
13

9.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
0,

60
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

1,
98

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
6,

15
7.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

12
6,

10
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

7,
98

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
0

16
5

24
0



Bi
d 

O
pe

ni
ng

 IF
B 

#1
21

4 
Pa

ck
er

 T
ru

ck
O

pe
ne

d 
on

 4
/1

1/
12

 a
t 2

:0
0 

p.
m

. Ve
nd

or
 N

am
e

Ci
ty

, S
ta

te

Ite
m

 #
1 

- T
ru

ck
 P

ric
e

M
ak

e 
an

d 
M

od
el

Ite
m

 #
2 

- P
ac

ke
r P

ric
e

M
ak

e 
an

d 
M

od
el

Ite
m

 #
3 

- T
ra

de
 in

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 1
99

8 
Fo

rd
O
pt
io
na

l

Ite
m

 #
4 

- O
pt

io
ns

Ho
pp

er
 L

in
er

Ca
rt

 T
ip

pe
r

Re
ev

in
g 

W
itc

h 
an

d 
Ki

ck
 B

ar

To
ta

l c
os

t f
or

 T
ru

ck
 a

nd
 P

ac
ke

r c
om

bi
ne

d
w

ith
ou

t t
ra

de
 in

To
ta

l c
os

t f
or

 T
ru

ck
 a

nd
 P

ac
ke

r c
om

bi
ne

d
w

ith
 tr

ad
e 

in

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
e 

de
liv

er
y 

AR
O

 in
 d

ay
s

Ki
ns

tle
 S

te
rli

ng
 W

es
te

rn
 

Ki
ns

tle
 S

te
rli

ng
 W

es
te

rn
 

St
ar

 T
ru

ck
 C

en
te

r
St

ar
 T

ru
ck

 C
en

te
r

Q
ua

lit
y 

Tr
uc

k 
Bo

dy
W

ap
ak

on
et

a,
 O

H 
W

ap
ak

on
et

a,
 O

H 
Yo

un
gs

to
w

n,
 O

H

77
,4

77
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

77
,4

77
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
67

,2
19

.4
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
W

es
te

rn
 S

ta
r 4

70
0 

SB
W

es
te

rn
 S

ta
r 4

70
0 

SB
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l 7

40
0 

4x
2 

(2
01

3)

54
,2

82
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

56
,2

31
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
52

,7
50

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
EZ

 P
ac

k 
G3

00
C 

w
/ p

us
he

r a
xl

e
M

cN
ei

lu
s 2

01
0

W
ay

ne
 F

ur
y

4,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

1,
67

3.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
46

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
59

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(A

) $
43

25
  (

B)
 $

55
15

6,
15

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

92
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,1
36

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

13
9.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6,
88

3.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
1,

75
9.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

3,
70

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

9,
96

9.
49

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
7,

75
9.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

9,
20

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

5,
96

9.
49

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

19
0-

23
0

19
0-

23
0

70
















